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The Patrick St. Lawrence House is located at 203 South Street, Pittsboro,
N. C. This address is not to be published.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Facing west at the end of a quiet cul-de-sac within the original town plan,

the Patrick St. Lawrence House is a five-bay two-story frame residence with a

low gable roof. Displaying scme diminution of the fenestration, the tall late-
eighteenth century facade is sheathed with beaded clapboards whlch as early

as 1798 were painted yellow. The tradition for painting the house yellow
continued into the nineteenth certury and can be confirmed in deed descriptions.
Resting on a new brick foundation, the house was once flanked by two exterior end
chimneys which have left their mark in the repaired weatherboards.

Altkough the present entrance porch with its deck-on-hip roof and lattice-work

posts is a reconstruction from an ear]y picture of the house, the location of a door,
which hangs lower than the second story w1ndows,vabove the entrance seems to conf:rm
the authentIC|ty of -the porch design.  The entrance below is comprised of two
five-panel doors with the original lock box, well-worn threshold and three-part
molded architrave. The nine-over-nine sash windows are set into robust three-

part molded architraves with molded sills. The roof is finished with a simple

box cornice and tapered rake bcards.

Adapted to fill the needs of an early inn, the plan of the St. Lawrence House

is unusual. - By means of a hinged, panelled partiticn which car be hooked to the ballrdéom
ceiling, the central-hall plan, with'a ballroom on one side and two parlors on

the other, can be thrown open. The ballroom, thereby, incorporates the handsome
staircase of the entrance hall. The elegant closed stringer staircase was built

with a half turn, and landings against the rear of the hall. Tradition holds

that the newel posts and balusters are imported woodwork. Indeed, there is a marked
contrast between the ornate staircase and the setting into

which it is installed. The massive hexagonal newel posts with their two-part

molded caps are linked 'by a heavy handrail supported by robustly-turned balusters.
There are no ramps or ease-offs. In contrast to the ornate stair, the

response of the balustrade along the wall is sheathed as is the panelling below the
stringer. The use of a sheathed wainscot is entirely in keeping with the tradition of
contemporary piedmont architecture and recurs in Pittsboro well into the 1830s.

The contrast of the two styles is nowhere more apparent than at the foot of

the staircase where the simple molded rail of the sheathed response abuts the
heavily molded chair rail and baseboard of the first floor. The chair rail,

which [is bilaterally symmetric, ic composed of a bead followed by a cyma recta

and a cyma reversa. Unlike the usual eighteenth century design, the chair rail

does not continue to form the window sill. The chair rail is finished off before
each window and the window is supported on a molded sill similar to that used

on the exterior. The mantel from tke ballroom was sold a number of years ago

and a vernacular Federal mantel from the Hanks-Horne House, now demolished, occupies
its place. The doors throughout the house are of a six-panel design with the
bevelled panel. towards the hall and flat panel towards the chamber. They are set into
three-part molded frames and fitted out with H and L hinges.

The two parlors and the chambers above originally contained corner fireplaces
which have left their mark in the diagonally laid floor boards. The front parlor
has been adapted for use as a kitchen and a modern bathroom has been added to

the second floor. In addition a one-story enclosed porch has been built on the

south end of the house and a one-story porch with a shed roof to the rear.
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Bullt ca. 1787 as an |nn, the Patrlck St. Lawrence House JS the oldest
building in the towp of Pittsboro and, with its robustly -carved c]osed strnnger
staircase and expandlng ballroom it is an outstanding rural examp]e of "the

Georglan/Federal sty]

CRITERIA ASSESSMENT
A. Originally built to overlook the courthouse square, the Patrick St. Lawrence

House is closely associated with the founding of the town of Pittsboro
in 1787 and served as the community's’ earliest lnh and gather«ng place.

B. The house was built by Patrick St. Lawrence who, in his positions as
early town commissioner, trustee of Pittsborough Academy, Mason and
innkeeper, provides valuable insights ‘into the town's early years.

C. Built as an inn, the Patrick St. Lawrence House is the town's oldest building
and is the sole example of Pittsborc's former Georgian/Federal tradition.
The house contains an unusual method for enlarging the first floor parlor.
By means of a moveable-partition wall the hall and parlor can be joined to

create a ballroom.



HISTORICAL BACKGROUND

On November 1, 1786 Patrick St. Lawrence purchased six Pittsboro town lots
containing 8 3/4 acres ''agreeable to a plan of the Town laid out on the Lands
purchased of William Petty by the Trustees appointed by the Hon. General Assembly
to lay out a Town on the Land of Mial Scurlock deceased.'’ St. Lawrence probably
came to Chatham Cotinty shortly before his purchase of the town land. Although
St. Lawrence was not connected with the two earlier attempts to found a town,

by 1786 he ranked agong the area's early leaders and was appointed one of the original
town commissioners. The third attempt to found the town of Pittsboro proved
successful and was confirmed by a legislative act on January 6, 1787.

Included among the lots which St. Lawrence purchased was town lot no. 50

which faced south across the public square where the new courthouse was ‘erected.
It was here on lot no. 50 that St. Lawrence erected an inn and home for his

new bride, Elizabeth McCarroll. Mrs. McCarroll was the widow of Dr. James
McCarroll wha owned a tract of about 500 acres west of Pittsboro and who ran an
ordinary. Described by his wife as ''Remarkable for his knowledge in the arts

and science,' McCarroll must have set a high standard which St. Lawrence felt

compelled ta equal.3. In his effort to excell, St. Lawrence, it fs said,

built a house so grand that both he and the contractor went into bankruptcy

While .the true scale of St. Lawrence's wealth.can be questioned, the man was. undoubtedly
well-to-do. An inventory of his possessions included a billiard table, two dozen
chairs, a clock, a buffet, a desk and bookcase, eight tables, twelve pictures, a

settee and four beds. This pigture also included three Negro slaves, a mare and

cart and seven head of cattle.

Besides his considerable land holdings and his work helping to establish the

town, St. Lawrence was a érustee of the Pittsborough Academy and an early member of
the town's Masonic order. By 1798, however, Patrick St. Lawrence wgs in debt to
his wife's son Thomas McCarroll and to Robert Donaldson (1764-1808). It is not
known how long St. Lawrence continued to live in the house before he went to
Mississippi but on August 13, 1798 hés property went up for public sale, and Donatdson
purchased lot no. 50 for 720 pounds. The garden lot no. 31 behind the house

was sold for 62 pounds. Robert Donaldson was a merchant from Fayetteville who in
1795 married Sarah Henderson the daugbter of John Henderson, a Pittsboro

business associate and one of the county's largest landowners. "9 Donaldson's

first son and namesake rose to prominence as a New York banker and patron
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of the arts. |t was probably thrcugh family or business connections that the elder
Donaldson acquired the property but he continued to reside in Fayetteville.

Seven years after_his purchase of the St. Lawrence House, Donaldson sold it

to Joseph Harmon.

Joseph Harmon occupied the St. Lawrence House and continued to run the

place as an inn and tavern. In 1806 the inn was the scene of a three day

main, or series of cockfights, which drew attention from as far away as

Raleigh.]] In 1815 Harmon, who was by this time in business with William

Poe, sold the inn to one of the town's most prosperous investors, Winship

Stedman. 12 Stedman's acquisitions of town property began in 1789 and continued

until his death in 1828. Among his other holdings was the house of Elisha

Stedman, reportedly the town's first residence. It would appear that Stedman
purchased the inn in 1815 as a business venture. He, like Harmon was licensed to sell
spirituous liquor and his inventory reveals that he resided on another tcwn lot.

It would appear that shortly after Stedman's death in 1828 the family took up ]
the practice of renting out the Patrick St. Lawrence House. The' Chatham Reminiscences'
of lawyer Joseph John Jackson reveal that in 1833 the St. Lawrence House was the
residence of Capt. Peter Le Messeurier. Le Messeurier came to Pittsboro in 1831 to take
over the principle post at the Pittsborough Academy. The academy drew students

from a wide radius ard Jackson recalled his move from his home in Orange County to
Pittsboro where he attended the school and boarded, as did others, with Le

Messeurier. In 1834 Le Messeurger left Pittsboro and continued his teaching

career at the Raleigh Academy.‘

Following Le Messeurier's occupancy, Stedman's wife sold the house to her

daughter Nancy W. Poe in 1836. > Sometime before the Civil War the house was
purchased by Elizabeth Ramsey Goldston who operated it as an inn through the

war years. |In 1863 Sheriff Richard Bray Paschal noted with horror that his
one-night stay cost seven dollars.16 Following the war ''the house known as the
Yellow House'' was transferred from Elizabeth Goldston to Edward B. Ramsey, her

son by her previous marriage.]7 Under the same transaction Ramsey sold the

house to Aaron G. Headen, Luther Bynum and Mark Bynum trading as the mercantile
firm.of Headen, Bynum and Company. Aaron G. Headen, the mercantile firm's founder,
resided in the St. Lawrence House until his death in 1907. Following Headen's
death the St. Lawrence House was inhabited by Headen's wife until it was moved

to lot no. 91 on the east side of South Street below the courthouse. It was
here that Mr. H. G. Beard and Mr. and Mrs. Sam Beard lived.]9 Iin 1955 the Chatham
County Commissioners purchased the property in preparation for a new agricultural
building.zo The present owner Mrs. Emily T. Brower bought the house and had

it once again moved to lot no. 125 at the end of South Street.
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